
c/o Helms & Company, Inc.  One Pillsbury Street, Suite 200  Concord NH 03301  603-225-6633  www.nhvaccine.org 

AGENDA 
Board Meeting 

November 18, 2020, 9:00am-10:00am 
Via Webinar 

An individualized link will be sent to you upon registration 

Time Agenda Item 
9:00-9:05 1. Welcome & Roll Call (S. Tenney)

Recording announcement

9:05-9:10 2. Review and Acceptance of Minutes (S. Tenney)
a. September 23, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes – VOTE

9:10-9:15 3. Review and Acceptance of the FY2020 Audit Report (D. Sky)– VOTE

9:15-9:25 4. Review and Acceptance of the FY2020 Annual Report (S. Tenney) – VOTE

9:25-9:35 5. Executive Director Report (Miller)
a. CY2021 Meeting Schedule Discussion and Adoption
b. Review of FYTD 2021 Unaudited Financial Statements
c. Assessment Update

9:35-9:45 6. DHHS Update (Daly)

9:45-9:50 7. Public Comments

9:50-10:00 8. Executive Session – Board Attendance Only
Separate Zoom link to access emailed to Board members

10:00 9. Adjournment 

Meeting Packet Page #1



 
 
 

1 

DRAFT 1 
MINUTES 2 

Annual Meeting and Board of Directors Meeting 3 
September 23, 2020 4 
9:00 – 11:00 a.m. 5 

Presiding Officer:  Susan Tenney, Chair 6 
 7 
A meeting of the of the Board of Directors of the New Hampshire Vaccine Association (NHVA) was held via Zoom 8 
Webinar with a quorum present. 9 
 10 
The meeting was called to order by Susan Tenney, Chair, at 9:02 a.m. 11 
 12 
1. Welcome and Roll Call 13 

 14 
Attendance – The following individuals attended the meeting: 15 
 16 
Committee Members:  Other Attendees & Administrative Staff: 
Susan Tenney, HPHC, Chair  Karen Carew, Carew & Wells 
David Sky, NHID, Treasurer  Mark McCue, Esq., Hinckley Allen 
Sean Lyons, Cigna, Secretary  Patrick Miller, Helms & Company, Inc. 
Elizabeth Daly, NH DHHS  Erin Meagher, Helms & Company, Inc. 
Patricia Edwards, MD, Healthcare Provider  Keith Nix, Helms & Company, Inc. 
Jason Margus, Anthem  Tony Mendez, Helms & Company, Inc. 
Edward Moran, Public Member, Vice Chair   
Wendy Lee Parker, HealthTrust  Members of the Public: 
Lorraine Radick, RPh, Public Member  Laura Condon, Bedford 
Janice Valmassoi, MD, Healthcare Provider  Heather Entenmann, Merck 
  Elizabeth Kinney, Portsmouth 
  Lorraine Lindenberg, Derry 
  Cheryl Rounds, Derry 
  Holy Ruocco, Salem 
  Larisa Trexler, Stoddard 
   

For the purpose of meeting minutes, Mr. Miller announced he was recording the meeting. Separately, Ms. Ruocco 17 
indicated she was also recording the meeting. 18 
 19 
Ms. Tenney welcomed the Board Members, staff, and members of the public to the meeting.  She proceeded to read 20 
the Board Chair Statement Regarding Public Commentary During Meetings drafted by Attorney McCue.  21 
 22 
2. FY2020 Audit Review 23 
 24 
Ms. Tenney welcomed Ms. Carew from Carew & Wells to the meeting. Ms. Carew began by advising the Board that 25 
the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial statements as drafted and subsequently voted to recommend that 26 
the full Board accept them.   Ms. Carew began with the Statement of Financial Position and explained that the most 27 
significant change from the prior fiscal year is that the investments reflect an increase of $6,814,180.  This is a result 28 
of the organization moving funds into an investment account to provide for a long‐term conservative rate of return.  29 
The Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets portrays the assessment income with donor restrictions and 30 
$127,226 left to cover operating expenses after the remittance to the State of New Hampshire. 31 
 32 

Meeting Packet Page #2



 
 
 

2 

The Statements of Cash Flow reconciles the difference between the net income and how the cash position may have 33 
changed.   The statement reflects how $6,724,277 was moved  from cash  into  investments.   Mr. Miller reminded 34 
Board members that are not part of the Audit Committee that funds were transferred out of the ICS account earlier 35 
in the year into longer term, higher yielding investments.  Under Notes to Financial Statements, there was a new 36 
note in the last year which addressed cash and other resources that may be available in the next year.   37 
 38 
Ms. Carew reviewed the TRICARE assessment settlement and the recoupment of arrearages.  The beginning balance 39 
was $1,334,003 and with $395,271 that has been received, there is a balance of $938,732 still to be collected. The 40 
final note in the Notes of Financial Statements was referenced by Ms. Carew.  The Association has not experienced 41 
any disruption in daily operations because of the pandemic, and Management is actively monitoring the situation 42 
for potential impact to covered lives in the commercial market.  It would be impractical to estimate the future effect, 43 
if any, given the ongoing nature of the pandemic.   44 
 45 
Ms. Carew asked the Board if there were any questions.  Given no questions, Ms. Tenney asked the Board if anyone 46 
would like to make a motion to move to Executive Session with Ms. Carew as this opportunity was not afforded to 47 
the Audit Committee on September 9, 2020.   48 
 49 
VOTE RECORDED:   On a motion by Mr. Sky, seconded by Ms. Daly, by roll call it was unanimously  50 

VOTED:  To move into Executive Session. 51 
 52 

        Yes  No 53 
  Elizabeth Daly    X 54 
  Patricia Edwards, MD  X 55 
  Sean Lyons    X 56 
  Jason Margus    X 57 
  Edward Moran    X 58 
  Wendy Lee Parker  X 59 
  Lorraine Radick, RPh  X 60 
  David Sky    X 61 
  Susan Tenney    X 62 
  Janice Valmassoi, MD  X 63 

 64 
An Executive Session with the Auditor was held. 65 
 66 
Upon return from the Executive Session, Mr. Sky stated that the Governance Letter from Carew & Wells that had 67 
been  included and reviewed as part of the draft  financial statement packet during the September 9, 2020 Audit 68 
Committee meeting was not included in today’s Board meeting packet.  It was determined that this letter should be 69 
reviewed by all Board members before taking a vote of acceptance.   It was unanimously agreed to postpone the 70 
vote to accept the FY2020 Audit and Financial Statements until the November 18, 2020 Board meeting. Mr. Miller 71 
advised he would forward that letter to the Board immediately following the completion of the Board meeting.  72 
 73 
3. Review and Acceptance of the June 17, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 74 
 75 
Ms. Tenney asked if there were any questions or comments related to the draft June 17, 2020 minutes.  Attorney 76 
McCue  indicated  he was  in  attendance  of  this meeting  but was  not  listed  as  an  attendee.   Hearing  no  other 77 
comments, Ms. Tenney asked for a motion to approve the minutes.  78 
 79 
VOTE RECORDED:   On a motion by Mr. Sky, seconded by Mr. Lyons, buy roll call it was unanimously 80 

VOTED:  To accept  the  June 17, 2020 Board Meeting minutes with amendment  to  list 81 
Attorney McCue as in attendance. 82 

Meeting Packet Page #3



 
 
 

3 

 83 
        Yes  No 84 
  Elizabeth Daly    X 85 
  Patricia Edwards, MD  X 86 
  Sean Lyons    X 87 
  Jason Margus    X 88 
  Edward Moran    X 89 
  Wendy Lee Parker  X 90 
  Lorraine Radick, RPh  X 91 
  David Sky    X 92 
  Susan Tenney    X 93 
  Janice Valmassoi, MD  X 94 

 95 
4. Executive Director Report 96 
 97 
Ms. Tenney asked Mr. Miller  for  the Executive Director Report. Mr. Miller  stated  that  the CY2021 Rate  Setting 98 
presentation has been developed over the past two meetings with the Audit Committee and some of this has been 99 
previously shared with the Board during the June meeting.  The presentation consists of a brief background, a review 100 
of historic trends, the potential impact of COVID‐19, a review of documents received from the Department of Health 101 
and Human Services regarding the assessment process as well as the Administrative Budget approved by the Board 102 
during the June 17, 2020 meeting, and the final rate assumptions and proposed CY2021 assessment rate. 103 
 104 
Mr. Miller briefly reviewed the CY2021 Assessment Rate Setting Process Timeline slide and the FY2020 Significant 105 
Fiscal Events slide. In terms of the latter, there were no extraordinary expenses to report in FY2020, and notable 106 
income included the TRICARE assessment receipt, interest recoupment, investment income, dividend income, and 107 
an unrecognized gain on investments. 108 
 109 
Regarding the Assessment History / Timeline slide Mr. Miller advised the slide reflects events for both the calendar 110 
year and fiscal year. The numbers in black are actual and the numbers in red are projected.  Mr. Miler then reviewed 111 
the historical trend slides for context.  112 
 113 
The Audit Committee has spent time discussing what the possible  impact of COVID‐19 might be to covered  lives. 114 
Various sources of data were examined including national studies, unemployment rates, Medicaid enrollment, and 115 
NH DHHS childhood  immunization program vaccine orders. While  the unemployment  rate has  increased during 116 
COVID‐19, we do not know how many children have lost commercial coverage. Ms. Daly provided a brief overview 117 
of the work her team has been focused on to assist practices with their efforts to catch up on missed vaccines. Ms. 118 
Daly  advised  that  she  does  not  have  any  information  on  COVID‐19  vaccines  as  there  have  been  no  formal 119 
communications around who would be responsible for payment once a vaccine is developed.   120 
 121 
Mr. Miller directed the group to the notes on the bottom of the DHHS Tab C slide as they impact the assessment 122 
rate model.  The State’s request of the NHVA for next June totals $9,590,306.62.  Along with the October 2019 CDC 123 
replacement credit, there were unspent revenues of $3.2M as of June 30, 2020 that are accounted for in the model. 124 
The DHHS administrative cost request is not included in the model.  In response to a question, Ms. Daly explained 125 
the CDC replacement credit calculation.  In response to a question regarding where the actual vaccines are stored, 126 
Ms. Daly explained that all vaccines are stored at McKesson except for small quantities kept on hand by the State. 127 
 128 
In terms of the CDC replacement credit, this has been a factor since 2013. Prior to Helms’ role as Administrator it 129 
was not part of the rate setting model which resulted in cash building up within DHHS’ accounts. These funds have 130 
been recouped by NHVA through reduced payments to the State in the last two rate setting cycles. An additional 131 

Meeting Packet Page #4



 
 
 

4 

$3.2M will be recouped in June 2021. The recoupment of these funds has allowed the NHVA to earn interest which 132 
has more than paid the administrative fees.  133 
 134 
The CY2021 Core Rate Assumptions slide was reviewed by Mr. Miller prior  to reviewing  the CY2021 Cash Flow / 135 
Reconciliation / Rates slide.  The latter contains the methodology for the rate setting.  The rate for CY2020 is $6.80 136 
and the proposed rate for consideration by the Board today for CY2021  is$6.25.   The Audit Committee voted on 137 
September 9, 2020, to recommend a rate of $6.25 for CY2021 to the full Board.   138 
 139 
This rate reduction is due to a number of factors including a slight decline in overall program costs, the 10% reserve 140 
allowed by RSA 126‐Q, the $3.2M in funds at the State as of June 30, 2020, and the anticipated CDC replacement 141 
credit. The organization is starting the fiscal year in a strong cash position and will collect fewer dollars in the coming 142 
fiscal year than the last. Over the next five years, the model projects total assessable lives to decrease sharply and 143 
then slowing rebound as the economy recovers from the impacts of COVID‐19. The goal is to have $5M in reserves 144 
by the end of the five‐year period. The current model shows close to $7M, which ultimately could be less depending 145 
on several factors. Board members agreed that this cushion makes sense given uncertainties regarding the funding 146 
of a future COVID‐19 vaccine, and the desire to keep assessment rates level. 147 
 148 
Ms. Tenney stated that she thought the proposed rate and the model made a lot of sense and that it was discussed 149 
quite extensively at the Audit Committee meeting.  She stated that she liked the fact that from a payer perspective, 150 
NHVA is trying to maintain some consistency in the rates so that they are not significant going up or down every 151 
year.  Ms. Parker stated that the self‐funded employers were also looking for consistency. 152 
 153 
Mr. Miller concluded by saying that over the winter a more detailed quarterly modeling component will be added 154 
into in the projections and Helms will continue to simplify the overall modeling process. 155 
 156 
Ms. Tenney asked the Board if there were any questions, and hearing none, she asked for a motion. 157 
 158 
VOTE RECORDED:   On a motion by Ms. Parker, seconded by Mr. Lyons, by roll call it was  159 

VOTED:  To approve the assessment process, rate calculation, and the proposed CY2021 160 
assessment rate of $6.25.  161 

 162 
        Yes  No 163 
  Elizabeth Daly    X 164 
  Patricia Edwards, MD  X 165 
  Sean Lyons    X 166 
  Jason Margus    X 167 
  Edward Moran    X 168 
  Wendy Lee Parker  X 169 
  Lorraine Radick, RPh  X 170 
  Susan Tenney    X 171 
  Janice Valmassoi, MD  X 172 

 173 
Mr. Sky departed the meeting at 10:00am and did not vote. 174 
 175 
Ms. Tenney asked Mr. Miller to review the financial statements.  Mr. Miller stated there is not a lot to report as there 176 
are only  two months reflected  for  the current  fiscal year.   He stated  that  the assessment  income  is higher  than 177 
budgeted due to the timing of the collections. When the Board meets in November, the financial statements will 178 
include the fiscal year’s first quarter plus the first month of the next quarter as well as the assessments that are due 179 
November 15, 2020.The balance sheet shows a drop from $6.8M in short term investments to $4.969M.  This is a 180 

Meeting Packet Page #5



 
 
 

5 

result of CDs being called and then funds are transferred back into the ICS account.  The ICS account rate will be cut 181 
again to 40 basis points as of October 1, 2020.   182 
 183 
Mr. Moran asked whether the cash management was being handled by Helms or through a third party.  Mr. Miller 184 
explained the NHVA works with the Wealth Management Department at the Bank of New Hampshire.  Mr. Moran 185 
asked for clarification on the payment made to BoNH for their services.  Mr. Miller believes it is 40 basis points but 186 
can verify.   BoNH  invests  in vehicle with returns that cover the BoNH fees and are greater than the  ICS account 187 
returns. $7M of NHVA’s funds have being invested this way since March 2020. 188 
 189 
Mr. Moran expressed that using a big brokerage firm can be very expensive.  Mr. Miller agreed and explained that 190 
approximately 18 months ago, Helms put out an RFP which enabled the Audit Committee to review two banks and 191 
two investment advisory firms. After careful review of fees and other factors, a decision was made to continue with 192 
BoNH’s Wealth Management group.  The current low‐interest rate environment does not leave many investment 193 
options for NHVA.  194 
 195 
Mr. Miller concluded  the Executive Director update by mentioning  that  the November meeting will  include  the 196 
updated financials, FY2020 Audit review and vote, the Annual Report review and vote, and the adoption of next 197 
year’s meeting schedule.  Finally, Mr. Miller stated that Ms. Meagher will reach out to each Board member following 198 
the meeting regarding the annual signing of the Code of Ethics policy. 199 
 200 
5. DHHS Update 201 
 202 
Ms. Tenney asked Ms. Daly if she would like to give and update from the Department of Health and Human Services.  203 
Ms. Daly advised that she does not have any additional items that did not already come up through the review of 204 
the Executive Directors’ Report.  There were no Board member questions for Ms. Daly.   Mr. Miller thanked Ms. Daly 205 
and her  team  for  the  rate  setting process assistance, acknowledging  they are  in  the middle of  responding  to a 206 
pandemic.  207 
 208 
6. Public Comment 209 
 210 
Ms. Tenney invited comments from the members of the public.   211 
 212 
Ms. Condon thanked Helms & Company for their work on the meeting documents and the ability for the public to 213 
attend and participate.  She requested that it be notated during future meetings how many members of the public 214 
are in attendance since it is not displayed on the webinar.   Ms. Condon asked that the Board consider if an IRS Form 215 
990 is appropriate for NHVA.  She stated that RSA 126‐Q does not provide for funding of DHHS or their staff salaries 216 
and as such she believes it is inappropriate to continue to entertain the DHHS requests for such funding.  Ms. Condon 217 
questioned whether  the CDC  replacement  credit has been  considered  since 2013.   Ms. Condon  stated  that  she 218 
thought the Bank of New Hampshire Wealth Management fees were excessive.   She thanked the Board for their 219 
time. 220 
 221 
Ms. Tenney asked if there were any other members of the public who desired to make a statement. There were not 222 
responses.  223 
 224 
Mr. Miller  indicated  there were a  total of  five members of  the public currently attending  the webinar, and Ms. 225 
Meagher added that there had been as many as seven during the meeting. 226 
 227 
Ms. Tenney asked the Board members if there was a desire to enter another Executive Session.  Hearing no request 228 
to do so, Ms. Tenney asked  if anyone had any additional comments, concerns, or anything that Board members 229 
would like to discuss.  No additional comments were made.   230 

Meeting Packet Page #6



 
 
 

6 

 231 
7. Adjournment 232 
 233 
Ms. Tenney asked for a motion to adjourn.  234 
 235 
VOTE RECORDED:   On a motion by Ms. Daly, seconded by Mr. Lyons, by roll call it was 236 

VOTED:  To adjourn Executive Session at 10:39 a.m. 237 
 238 

        Yes  No 239 
  Elizabeth Daly    X 240 
  Patricia Edwards, MD  X 241 
  Sean Lyons    X 242 
  Jason Margus    X 243 
  Edward Moran    X 244 
  Wendy Lee Parker  X 245 
  Lorraine Radick, RPh  X 246 
  Susan Tenney    X 247 
  Janice Valmassoi, MD  X 248 

 249 
Mr. Sky departed the meeting at 10:00am and did not vote. 250 
 251 
Board of Directors Meeting minutes respectfully submitted by  252 
Sean Lyons, Board Secretary 253 
September 28, 2020 254 

 255 
#  #  # 256 

Meeting Packet Page #7



Meeting Packet Page #8



Meeting Packet Page #9



Meeting Packet Page #10



Meeting Packet Page #11



I N D E P E N D E N T   A U D I T O R S’   R E P O R T

The Board of Directors
New Hampshire Vaccine Association
Concord, NH

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Vaccine Association (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2020 and
2019, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of New Hampshire Vaccine Association, as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Carew & Wells, PLLC
Concord, New Hampshire
July 31, 2020

Meeting Packet Page #12

wbehling_CARE16E
Carew & Wells Signature-KEEP

wbehling_CARE16E
Letterhead Header

wbehling_CARE16E
Letterhead footer



Meeting Packet Page #13



Meeting Packet Page #14



Meeting Packet Page #15



Meeting Packet Page #16



Meeting Packet Page #17



Meeting Packet Page #18



Meeting Packet Page #19



Meeting Packet Page #20



Meeting Packet Page #21



Meeting Packet Page #22



Dear Friends  
 & Colleagues,  

 Now in its 18th year, 
NHVA is pleased to report 
continued success with carri-
er support and funding of 
childhood vaccines. This 
work would not be possible 
without the collaboration of 
private and public funding 
sources. 

 Thank you for your contin-
ued participation in the 
state’s programmatic funding 
of vaccine purchases to en-
sure all NH children have the 
opportunity to be vaccinated.  

 NHVA continues to work 
efficiently and effectively to 
fulfill its legislative purpose 
of vaccine funding. To this 
end, our operating expenses 
as a percentage of total as-
sessment income reached a 
low of .95% this year. 

 We are grateful for our 
colleagues at the NH De-
partment of Health and Hu-
man Services for their work 
during the COVID-19 pan-
demic to ensure vaccine 
supply. We know there are 
further challenges ahead.  

 Thank you for supporting 
NHVA and we look forward 
to an end to the COVID-19 
pandemic in the coming 
year.  

In gratitude, 

FY2020 Annual Report 
Universal Vaccine Purchasing Program Overview and Benefits 

  A universal vaccine purchasing program allows a state to purchase all recommended vaccines for 

children, regardless of insurance coverage or income. New Hampshire’s program enables state pur-

chase of vaccines for every resident child and distribution of these vaccines to health care  providers 

at no cost to them. The New Hampshire Vaccine Association (NHVA) employs a united approach in-

volving payers, providers, the NH Department of Health & Human Services, and the NH Insurance 

Department. For FY2019-20, 41.6% of the program funding was comprised of Federal Vaccine For 

Children Program (VFC) and State funds while the remaining 58.4% was comprised of Payer funds. 

  New Hampshire’s Universal Purchase Program ensures that every child who enters a doctor’s office 

or hospital can receive recommended vaccines at no cost. More providers have been able to offer 

vaccination services because they are no longer required to finance the up-front costs of vaccines or 

be burdened with complex ordering systems. As a result, New Hampshire has one of the highest vac-

cination rates in the country, and consistently achieves higher vaccination rates than the US as a 

whole. The program allows vaccines to be purchased from the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and 

Prevention at a lower-than-market rate. 

Financials  

Key points related to the Fiscal Year Ending (FYE) June 30, 2020 include: 

• Operating expenses as a percentage of total assessment income were .95% versus 2.17% in FYE 
June 30, 2019. 

• A strong cash management strategy resulted in a 49% increase in investment income from the 
prior year. We have worked with our asset manager to address the downturn in interest rates. 

• An increase in total assets as a result of three things: 1) success of a multi-year effort to recoup 
funds due NHVA by TRICARE, 2) a recoupment of NHVA funds held by the State as a result of 
CDC credits, and 3) a strong cash management strategy. The increased assets are being used 
both to create a reserve fund and to keep assessment rates level in future years. 

Susan M. Tenney 
Board Chair 
 

 

 
 

Patrick B. Miller, MPH 
Executive Director 

  June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 

Assessment Income, Interest on Late Assessments & TRICARE Settlement   $13,390,381  $17,927,769 

Assets Released for Operations  $127,226  $388,786 

Operating Expenses as a % of Total Assessment Income  .95%  2.17% 

Bank & Sweep Interest & Return on Investments  $336,008  $225,903 

Remittance to State of New Hampshire  $11,751,393  $9,234,656 

FI
N

A
N

C
IA

LS
 

  June 30, 2019 June 30,2018 
ASSETS   
 Current Assets   

 Cash & Cash Equivalents  $7,514,560  $12,220,200 
 Short Term Investments  -  $261,566 

 Prepaid Expenses            $1,960               $1,164    
 Total Current Assets  $7,516,520  $12,482,930 

TOTAL ASSETS  $7,516,520  $12,482,930 

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS   
 Current Liabilities   

 Accrued Expenses  $0  $0 
 Assessment Refund  $0             $0            

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  $0  $0 

 Net Assets   
 Net Assets without Donor Restrictions  $250,000  $250,000 

 Net Assets with Donor Restrictions  $14,080,700  $12,232,930 
TOTAL NET ASSETS  $14,330,700  $12,482,930 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS  $14,330,700  $12,482,930 

B
A

LA
N

C
E 

SH
EE

T 
C

O
M

P
A

R
IS

O
N

 

WWW.NHVACCINE.ORG Meeting Packet Page #23



NHVA Board of Directors 

Governmental Representatives 

Elizabeth R. Daly, MPH, Chief 
Bureau of Infectious Disease Control 
NH Dept of Health & Human Services 

David Sky, FSA, MAAA 
Life, Accident & Health Actuary 
New Hampshire Insurance Dept 

Healthcare Provider Representatives 

Patricia M. Edwards, MD 
Concord Pediatrics 

Janice Valmassoi, MD 
Dartmouth-Hitchcock 

Insurer Representatives 

Sean Lyons 
Senior Contract Manager 
Cigna Healthcare 

Jason Margus, FSA, MAAA 
Director of Actuary 
Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield 

Susan Tenney 
Director, Network Contracting 
Harvard Pilgrim Health Care, Inc. 

Public Members 

Edward P. Moran 
Appointed by the  
Speaker of the House 

Lorraine Radick 
Appointed by the  
President of the Senate 

Representatives of Self-Insured    
Entities  

Wendy Lee Parker 
Appointed by the 
Governor and Council 

WWW.NHVACCINE.ORG 

A Message from the Division of Public Health Services 

In New Hampshire and on the federal level, the year 2020 has been a challenge for individuals, busi-
nesses, for public health and the medical community as the novel coronavirus pandemic has disrupted 
all “normal” activities. Public health, in partnership with the medical community, has worked tirelessly 
to mitigate and contain this deadly virus. 

Both nationally and in New Hampshire, there was a significant decrease in vaccine ordering from mid-
March through May due to the disruptions in preventative services as a result of COVID-19. However, 
since the NH Immunization Program (NHIP) provides all of the pediatric vaccines to NH health care 
providers through our partnership with the federally funded Vaccines For Children (VFC) Program, NH 
health insurers, NH state government, and members of the NH Vaccine Association, continued ongo-
ing communications, support, and guidance with all of our providers. As a result, New Hampshire saw 
vaccine orders pick up by mid-May. Most providers are now ordering more vaccine than usual to catch 
up any patients who may have missed appointments during the initial stay at home orders and provid-
er practice closures. 

Administrator 

 

 

Phone: 603-225-6633 

Fax: 603-225-4739 

Website: www.helmsco.com 

Helms & Company, Inc. Staff 

Patrick B. Miller, MPH 
Executive Director, NHVA 

Erin K. Meagher 
Office Manager 

Keith R. Nix 
Controller 

In addition to the pandemic response, the NHIP is also launching a new Immunization Information 
System (IIS) while working in a compressed timeframe to be ready for COVID-19 vaccine. In the long 
term, the IIS will provide improved vaccine accountability, more accurate data and trends, identify 
areas of need and inform the work in maintaining NH’s high vaccination coverage rates. 

Our partnership with the NH Vaccine Association is critical to ensuring our immunization rates in NH 
stay high. Effective immunization not only protects individuals, but contributes to the overall health 
and well-being of the community and the state. Together, we have been instrumental in providing a 
cost-effective, preventable disease strategy that saves lives. Now, more than ever, we must remain 
steadfast in our work together to fight vaccine-preventable diseases.As always, we look forward to 
our continued partnership. We thank you for the work you do to assure the health and well-being of 
all NH communities. 

Sincerely, 

Lisa Morris, MSSW,  Elizabeth R. Daly, MPH  Colleen M. Haggerty 

Director, Division of   Chief, Bureau of Infectious  Chief, Immunization Section 

   Public Health Services     Disease Control 

Meeting Packet Page #24



  
 

 
2021 

Board of Directors & Audit Committee Meeting Schedule 
Updated 10/27/2020 

 
Date and Time Meeting Location 

Wednesday, January 13, 2021 
9:00-11:00 am 

Board To be determined 

Wednesday, March 3, 2021 
9:00-11:00 am 

Board To be determined 

Wednesday, April 28, 2021 
9:00-11:00 am 

Audit Committee To be determined 

Wednesday, June 16, 2021 
9:00-11:00 am 

Board & Annual 
Meeting 

To be determined 

Thursday, August 25, 2021 
9:00-11:00 am 

Audit Committee To be determined 

Wednesday, September 8, 2021 
9:00-11:00 am 

Audit Committee To be determined 

Wednesday, September 22, 2021 
9:00-11:00 am 

Board To be determined 

Wednesday, October 20, 2021 
9:00-11:00 am 

Board (tentative, 
place holder) 

To be determined 

Wednesday, November 17, 2021 
9:00-11:00 am 

Board To be determined 

 

Meeting Packet Page #25



 
 

 

c/o Helms & Company, Inc.  One Pillsbury Street, Suite 200  Concord NH 03301  603-225-6633  www.nhvaccine.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW HAMPSHIRE VACCINE ASSOCIATION 
 

UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE MONTH AND QUARTER ENDED 
 

October 31, 2020 
 
 
 

Prepared by 
Helms & Company, Inc., Administrator 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Packet Page #26



 
 

 

c/o Helms & Company, Inc.  One Pillsbury Street, Suite 200  Concord NH 03301  603-225-6633  www.nhvaccine.org 

 

New Hampshire Vaccine Association 

Notes to Financial Statements 

For the Month and Quarter Ended September 30, 2020 

 
Statement of Cash Flow. 

1. The assessment income is ahead of budget due to COVID-19 impacts being less than 
anticipated to date. 

2. The interest income for both bank & sweep (ICS) and investments is lower than budget 
due to declining interest rates. 

3. The expenses are ahead of budget with Legal, Management Fees, Bank Service Charges, 
and Website being furthest ahead of budget.  

 
Statement of Financial Position. 

1. No notes. 
 
Statement of Changes in Assets. 

1. The positive average lives variance is due to COVID-19 impacts being less than 
anticipated to date. 

 
 

Meeting Packet Page #27



Cash Basis   NHVA
Statement of Cash Flow

YTD FY2021 
Month Ended October, 31 2020

FY21 - Q1  
Actual

FY21 - Q2  
Actual

FY21 - Q3  
Actual

FY21 - Q4 
Actual

FY 2021               
YTD Actual

FY 2021                
YTD Budget

Difference              
YTD                     

Act to Bud
FY 2021     

Annual Budget
10/31/20

Receipts (Source)
Assessment Income 3,341,697         120,992         -                  -                  3,462,689      3,227,285      235,404          12,059,485         
Assessment Income - TRICARE (Settlement) 103,217             -                  -                  -                  103,217         100,815         2,402              401,145              

* Accounts Receivable -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                       
Interest Income - Assessments 242                    1                     -                  -                  243                 -                  243                 293                      
Interest Income - Bank & Sweep (ICS) 13,007               4,419             -                  -                  17,426           19,560           (2,133)             58,679                 
Interest Income - Investments 23,259               4,523             -                  -                  27,782           31,715           (3,934)             95,146                 
Dividend Income 21                      2                     -                  -                  23                   31                   (8)                     93                        
Investment Advisory fees (6,520)                (1,611)            -                  -                  (8,130)            (9,125)            995                 (27,376)               
Unrecognized Gain or Loss 1,947                 (1,264)            -                  -                  683                 4,307             (3,623)             12,920                 
Realized Gain or Loss 603                    -                  -                  -                  603                 1,205             (603)                3,616                   

** Investment - Short term and CDs 2,077,691         (1,651)            -                  -                  2,076,039      -                  2,076,039      -                       
5,555,163         125,412         -                  -                  5,680,576      3,375,793      2,304,783      12,604,002         

Disbursements (Use)
*** Expenses 32,752               10,774           -                  -                  43,526           51,948           (8,422)             9,736,857           
* Prepaids & Payables Change (840)                   (1,477)            -                  -                  (2,317)            -                  (2,317)             -                       

Vaccine Expenses -                     -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                       
31,912               9,297             -                  -                  41,209           51,948           (10,739)           9,736,857           

Increase (Decrease) 5,523,251         116,115         -                  -                  5,639,366      3,323,845      2,315,522      2,867,146           

Cash Balance - Beginning 7,514,560         13,037,811    13,153,926    13,153,926    7,514,560      7,514,560      -                  7,514,560           
Cash Balance - Ending 13,037,811       13,153,926    13,153,926    13,153,926    13,153,926    10,838,404    2,315,522      10,381,705         

Notes:
*   Changes in Balance Sheet accounts are denoted as () = Increases and positive = decrease
** The positive number represents amounts transferred back to the ICS account from the Short Term Investments (CD's)
*** Budgeted expense includes annual State of NH payment due June 2021

11/9/2020 Meeting Packet Page #28



Cash Basis  NHVA

Statement of Financial Position
 YTD FY2021 

Month Ended October 31, 2020

Jun 30, 20 Sep 30, 20 Oct 31, 20 Mar 31, 21 Jun 30, 21

ASSETS FYE 20 FY21 - Q1 FY21 - Q2 FY21 - Q3 FY21 - Q4

Current Assets Audited Interim Interim Interim Audited
Checking/Savings

Bank of NH #851031104 50,000$                 49,925$            28,553$            -$                       -$                      
Bank of NH - ICS 7,464,560$            12,987,807$    13,125,373$    -$                       -$                      

Total Checking/Savings 7,514,560$            13,037,732$    13,153,926$    -$                       -$                      
Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable (A/R) -$                        -$                   -$                   -$                       -$                      
Allowance for Account Receivable -$                        -$                   -$                   -$                       -$                      

Total Accounts Receivable -$                        -$                   -$                   -$                       -$                      
Other Current Assets

Prepaid Expenses 1,960$                    1,120$              840$                  -$                       -$                      
Short Term Investments 6,814,180$            4,736,489$       4,738,140$       -$                       -$                      
Unrecognized Gain or Loss - ST -$                        -$                   -$                   -$                       -$                      

Total Other Current Assets 6,816,140$            4,737,609$       4,738,980$       -$                       -$                      
Total Current Assets 14,330,699$         17,775,341$    17,892,907$    -$                       -$                      

TOTAL ASSETS 14,330,699$         17,775,341$    17,892,907$    -$                       -$                      
LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
* Accounts Payable -$                        -$                   1,197$              -$                       -$                      

Other Current Liabilities
Liquidity Reserve 250,000$               250,000$          250,000$          -$                       -$                      

Total Current Liabilities 250,000$               250,000$          251,197$          -$                       -$                      
Total Liabilities 250,000$               250,000$          251,197$          -$                       -$                      
Equity

Retained Earnings 10,386,901$         12,234,671$    12,234,671$    -$                       -$                      
Fund Balance to be Distributed 1,846,029$            1,846,029$       1,846,029$       -$                       -$                      
Net Income 1,847,770$            3,444,642$       3,561,010$       -$                       -$                      

Total Equity 14,080,699$         17,525,341$    17,641,710$    -$                       -$                      
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 14,330,699$         17,775,341$    17,892,907$    -$                       -$                      

Notes: * AP State of New Hampshire Payable (June 2021) 9,590,307$          

11/9/2020  Page 2 of 3Meeting Packet Page #29



          
           Cash Basis

 NHVA

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
YTD FY2021

Month Ended October 31, 2020

  

FY21 - Q1  
Actual

FY21 - Q2   
Actual

FY21 - Q3   
Actual

FY21 - Q4   
Actual

FY 2021               
YTD Actual

FY 2021                
YTD Budget

Difference              
YTD Act to Bud

FY 2021               
Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense 10/31/20 10/31/20 10/31/20 10/31/20
Income

Assessment Income 3,341,697$        120,992$          -$                   -$                    3,462,689$             3,227,285$           235,404$               12,059,485$              
Assessment Income - TRICARE (Settlement) 103,217$           -$                   -$                   -$                    103,217$                 100,815$              2,402$                    401,145$                    
Interest Income - Assessments 242$                   1$                       -$                   -$                    243$                         -$                       243$                       293$                            
Interest Income - Bank & Sweep (ICS) 13,007$              4,419$               -$                   -$                    17,426$                   19,560$                 (2,133)$                   58,679$                      
Interest Income - Investments 23,259$              4,523$               -$                   -$                    27,782$                   31,715$                 (3,934)$                   95,146$                      
Dividend Income 21$                      2$                       -$                   -$                    23$                           31$                         (8)$                           93$                              
Investment Advisory fees (6,520)$               (1,611)$             -$                   -$                    (8,130)$                    (9,125)$                  995$                       (27,376)$                     
Unrecognized Gain or Loss 1,947$                (1,264)$             -$                   -$                    683$                         4,307$                   (3,623)$                   12,920$                      
Realized Gain or Loss 603$                   -$                   -$                   -$                    603$                         1,205$                   (603)$                      3,616$                         

Total Income 3,477,473$        127,064$          -$                   -$                    3,604,536$             3,375,793$           228,743$               12,604,002$              

Expenses
Bank Service Charges -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                         667$                      (667)$                      2,000$                         
Vaccine - Annual State Payment -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                         -$                       -$                        9,590,307$                 
Management Fees 25,000$              8,750$               -$                   -$                    33,750$                   35,000$                 (1,250)$                   105,000$                    
Professional Fees - Legal 1,204$                1,197$               -$                   -$                    2,401$                     8,333$                   (5,932)$                   25,000$                      
Professional Fees - Audit 5,500$                -$                   -$                   -$                    5,500$                     5,500$                   -$                        8,500$                         
Insurance 840$                   280$                  -$                   -$                    1,120$                     1,333$                   (213)$                      4,000$                         
Postage & Printing (Office) 133$                   61$                    -$                   -$                    194$                         180$                      14$                          540$                            
Website & SubContractors -$                    486$                  -$                   -$                    486$                         525$                      (39)$                        525$                            
Board Meetings Expense -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                         335$                      (335)$                      910$                            
Dues & Subscriptions -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                         -$                       -$                        -$                             
TRICARE - Washington -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                         -$                       -$                        -$                             
Public Information -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                         -$                       -$                        -$                             
Advertising -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                         -$                       -$                        -$                             
Licenses and Fees 75$                      -$                   -$                   -$                    75$                           75$                         -$                        75$                              

Total Expenses 32,752$              10,774$            -$                   -$                    43,526$                   51,948$                 (8,422)$                   9,736,857$                 
Net Ordinary Income 3,444,720$        116,290$          -$                   -$                    3,561,010$             3,323,845$           237,166$               2,867,146$                 
Net Income 3,444,720$        116,290$          -$                  -$                    3,561,010$             3,323,845$           237,166$               2,867,146$                 

Collection Data:
Quarter being collected SFY21 - Q1 SFY21 - Q2 SFY21 - Q3 SFY21 - Q4
Payment Due Date 11/15/20 02/15/21 05/15/21 08/15/21
Projected Average Monthly Lives 153,000              -                     -                     -                      
Actual Average Monthly Lives 163,838              -                     -                     -                      

Avg Lives Variance   +(-) 10,838                -                     -                     -                      
Approved Assessment Rate 6.80$                  -$                   -$                   -$                    
Actual Average Monthly Lives - TRICARE 4,812                  -                     -                     -                      
Additional Assessment Rate - TRICARE 8.02$                  -$                   -$                   -$                    

11/9/2020  Page 3 of 3Meeting Packet Page #30


	01.a. 2020-11-18 NHVA Agenda
	02. 2020-09-23 NHVA Board Meeting MINUTES - DRAFT v2 - POSTED
	03. 2019-2020 Audit and Board Letter
	Published GOVLTR
	Published Financial Statements
	letter fs


	04. 2019-2020 Annual Report - Public - Draft v2
	05.a. 2020-10-27 - 2021 Meeting Schedule FINAL
	05.b. 2020-11-09 Oct 2020 Financial Statements
	2020-11-09 Financial Statements Cover Page and Notes
	FY2021 Q2 NHVA Unaudited Financials 103120




